
Date Published:19 May 2022     

Fire and Rescue Scrutiny Committee

Friday 27 May 2022 at 10.00 am

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES 

To note any apologies.

Cllr Jeremy 
Hilton

2  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 8)

To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 4 March 2022. 

Cllr Jeremy 
Hilton

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

To receive any pecuniary or personal interests from members. 

Cllr Jeremy 
Hilton

SCRUTINY ITEMS

4  PROPOSALS FOR THE SHARED USE OF NEWENT AND DURSLEY 
COMMUNITY FIRE STATIONS (Pages 9 - 12)

To consider a report on proposals for the shared use of Newent and 
Dursley Community Fire Stations. 

Mark Preece

5  GFRS NET ZERO CARBON REPORT (Pages 13 - 22)

To consider a report on how GFRS aims to achieve the GCC target of net 
zero carbon by 2030, including the current carbon situation, and actions 
that will be taken by GFRS going forward. 

John Townsend, 
Mark Preece

6  HMICFRS INSPECTION UPDATE (Pages 23 - 46)

To receive a presentation on progress to address the two causes of 
concern identified during the recent HMICFRS inspection. 

Mark Preece



    

7  GFRS PERFORMANCE DATA AND UPDATES (Pages 47 - 58)

To consider the latest GFRS performance data and to consider a brief 
report on wholetime firefighters benchmarking.  

Mark Preece

WORK PLANNING

8  WORK PLAN 2022 (Pages 59 - 60)

To consider the Committee work plan, and to suggest items for 
consideration at future meetings.

Cllr Jeremy 
Hilton

9  FUTURE MEETINGS 

To note the meeting dates for the remainder of 2022 (all meetings to start 
at 10am):

15 July 2022
2 September 2022
11 November 2022. 

Cllr Jeremy 
Hilton

Membership –  Cllr Bernard Fisher, Cllr Jeremy Hilton (Chair), Cllr Nick Housden, 
Cllr Mark Mackenzie-Charrington, Cllr Wendy Thomas, Cllr Brian Tipper and Cllr Pam Tracey MBE 

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Director of Policy, 
Performance and Governance, Rob Ayliffe 01452 328198 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: 
rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Laura Powick, Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324205/fax: 425850/e-mail: laura.powick@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c) GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (tel 01452 425230) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:laura.powick@gloucestershire.gov.uk


- 1 -

FIRE AND RESCUE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MINUTES of the meeting of the Fire and Rescue Scrutiny Committee held on Friday 
4 March 2022 commencing at 10.00 am at the Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester.

PRESENT

Cllr Bernard Fisher
Cllr Jeremy Hilton (Chair)
Cllr Nick Housden (Vice-
Chair)

Cllr Mark Mackenzie-Charrington
Cllr Wendy Thomas
Cllr Pam Tracey MBE

Substitutes:

Apologies:

In Attendance:

Cllr Brian Tipper

Cllr David Norman, Cabinet Member for Public Protection, Parking 
and Libraries
Mark Preece, Interim Chief Fire Officer, GFRS
Clive Webber, Head of Business Planning and Performance, GFRS
Derek McCullough, SWAST

33. APOLOGIES 

Apologies were received from Cllr Brian Tipper. 

34. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on 14 January 2022 were agreed as a correct 
record. 

35. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made at the meeting. 

36. GFRS COLLABORATION WITH SWAST 

Mark Preece, Chief Fire Officer (CFO), presented the report by Gloucestershire Fire 
and Rescue Service (GFRS) on collaboration with South Western Ambulance 
Service NHS Foundation Trust (SWAST).

Members were advised that GFRS first started collaborating with the ambulance 
service in the form of co-responding in 2006, which had since been followed by 
cardiac response, Concern for Safety, use of GFRS station facilities and Operation 
Braidwood in 2020.

Members understood that GFRS co-responders were used when they were the 
closest medical asset to the incident, with protocols mobilising an ambulance in 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

tandem. However, this could take some time given the rural nature of 
Gloucestershire. There were 11 stations co-responding and two co-responding 
models operating in the County. 

It was noted that in 2021, GFRS attended 732 co-responding incidents on behalf of 
SWAST, and there were a further 403 incidents that GFRS could not attend for 
several reasons. Members were advised that the statutory responsibilities of GFRS 
always came first and therefore a co-responder would not be mobilised if it would 
have a detrimental effect on these responsibilities. All staff costs were re-charged to 
SWAST.

In terms of cardiac care, which involved a full appliance being mobilised from 
wholetime stations to persons with cardiac issues, the Committee was informed that 
GFRS attended 51 incidents in 2021, with a further 62 not attended. This was for a 
number of reasons including that cardiac care was not part of the firefighter’s 
national role, and therefore not all staff were comfortable to undertake the activity. It 
was noted that there was a regular challenge through trade unions for this service 
to not be provided. 

Members were informed of the Concern for Safety initiative between GFRS, 
SWAST and the Police whereby GFRS took on the responsibility for gaining access 
to a locked property when requested by SWAST if there was a concern for a 
person’s welfare. The benefits of this collaborative work included better outcomes 
for patients. 

Finally, it was explained that four fire stations in Gloucestershire were used by 
SWAST for welfare facilities, and a further two for change of shift and storage. 

Derek McCullough, SWAST, introduced the report from SWAST on its collaboration 
with GFRS, focusing particularly on Operation Braidwood. Operation Braidwood 
was introduced in response to Covid-19 and involved the dual crewing of a number 
of SWAST ambulances with a member of SWAST and a firefighter from one of the 
5 fire services in the South West, including GFRS.

Members were informed that the model adopted was for firefighters to undertake 
emergency driving and provide support to the SWAST member of staff. It was noted 
that this project was a good example of partnership working, with agreement for the 
project being established within just two weeks and enabling patients to receive the 
care they needed throughout the pandemic. 

The Committee was informed that initially, firefighters were crewed with Emergency 
Care Assistants and tasked to low acuity patients, however as demand increased 
as the pandemic progressed, firefighters were despatched alongside a paramedic 
to all categories of calls. It was noted that 182 episodes of cardiac arrest were 
attended through Operation Braidwood between November 2020 and mid-February 
2022, which had potentially resulted in the saving of these lives. 

An example of the benefits of this collaborative work was provided to the 
Committee, whereby a firefighter attending an incident alongside a SWAST 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

member had identified that the patient was hard of hearing and therefore arranged 
for a vibrating fire alarm to be fitted. 

It was also noted that ambulance staff welcomed working alongside firefighters, as 
it provided an opportunity to learn new skills, as well as helping to relieve 
pressures. 

One member queried how the ambulance service coped when the fire service was 
unable to co-respond? In response it was explained that the call would default back 
to the ambulance service. Clarification was also sought as to how the single 
response model of co-responding worked. 

Several members commented on the positive outcomes of this collaborative project 
and hoped it would continue even after the pandemic. In response to queries 
relating to this, it was understood that consideration was being given as to how 
Operation Braidwood could be established on a permanent basis. Members were 
reminded that firefighters could not be enforced to provide this support, however it 
was hoped more would volunteer going forward to increase capacity.   

In response to a query, it was understood that currently only wholetime firefighters 
could be involved with Operation Braidwood. One member suggested that allowing 
on-call firefighters to volunteer to take part could help with the recruitment and 
retention of these firefighters by providing them with an additional opportunities to 
help the community.

A question was asked as to the benefits of collaborative working for individual 
firefighters and paramedics. In response, the CFO explained that firefighters felt 
they were contributing to the community and were able to develop transferable 
skills. Derek McCullough added that a number of retained firefighters had changed 
employment to join the ambulance service, and ambulance staff welcomed working 
alongside the expertise of firefighters, which led to better outcomes for patients. 

There was a further query as to whether consideration had been given to other 
examples of collaboration between fire and ambulance services in other countries. 
In response, members were advised that other models had not been explored 
further in Gloucestershire, with any change to models requiring a paramedic on a 
fire appliance requiring national consideration. 

The Committee thanked both the CFO and Derek McCullough for their 
presentations and commended and supported the continued partnership working. 

37. UPDATE ON THE COMMUNITY RISK MANAGEMENT PLAN 

The CFO introduced the update on progress with the Community Risk Management 
Plan (CRMP), thanking the team responsible for its development for their work.

Clive Webber, Head of Business Planning and Performance, GFRS, explained that 
feedback from the public consultation had been incorporated into the document, 
which had resulted in an additional objective being included. It was understood that 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

the document was still in its draft format as it was still being developed by the GCC 
design team.

The Committee was informed that the document would be considered by Cabinet at 
its meeting on 30 March and subject to approval, would be publicly available from 5 
April. 

One member suggested that a version of the CRMP that would be accessible to the 
visually impaired or non-readers should be developed. 

Referring to the project to combine GCC and GFRS ICT systems, one member 
queried whether GFRS would be resilient to cyber incidents. In response, the CFO 
explained that whilst they could integrate with GCC in some areas, some systems 
would remain separate. He also provided assurance that cyber security was under 
constant review and monitoring. 

One member suggested that potential GFRS recruits should be signposted to the 
CRMP, given the depth of information it contained, as part of the recruitment 
process. 

A member queried the role of GFRS in contributing to GCC’s net zero carbon target 
and suggested that this should be addressed within the CRMP. The CFO explained 
in response that they currently had a mixed fleet; however green fire appliances 
were currently cost prohibitive. Clive Webber added that GFRS was moving 
towards a combined fleet unit with GCC and therefore the exploration of fuelling 
alternatives would be considered more holistically moving forward. 

Another member cautioned against setting time limits within the CRMP relating to 
the net zero carbon target, particularly given the current cost of living crisis and 
global events. 

It was suggested that an annual update be provided to the Committee on GFRS 
progress towards the net zero carbon target, and that an initial report be brought to 
the next Committee meeting. 

There was a further query as to whether the targets set in the CRMP were 
achievable. In response officers recognised that they were ambitious but advised 
that a number of projects were already underway and that additional funding 
through the budget for additional posts would help to increase capacity. 

38. GFRS PERFORMANCE DATA AND UPDATES 

Clive Webber presented the Committee with the latest GFRS performance data, 
highlighting that half of all indicators were better than target in Quarter 3; the 
number of accidental dwelling fires had continued reducing; the timeliness of 
responding to accidental fire dwellings was better than target; the rate of Safe and 
Well visits saw a marginal improvement for the second quarter; 78% of Safe and 
Well visits were undertaken to people in vulnerable groups; work was continuing to 
ensure all service areas had up to date business continuity plans in place; and 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

MTFS bids were currently progressing to cover additional resources, development 
and training. 

A member queried whether an increase in the number of residential fires was 
anticipated as people explored the use of alternative fuels to heat their homes as 
result of the increase in fuel bills. In response, it was explained that changes to the 
legislation relating to carbon producers in the home had resulted in log burners 
becoming unfashionable, and that people would be prevented using calor gas 
heaters as it cost the same as natural gas. Nevertheless, this situation would be 
monitored. 

Clarification was sought as to what a pre-alert was and how it would help to 
improve response times. 

There was a query as to the impact of Brexit on supplies and related costs. In 
response, officers explained that production delays had resulted from the Covid-19 
pandemic rather than Brexit, with the time between ordering and receiving 
appliances extending to up to 2 years. 

Further clarification was sought as to whether GFRS had its own maintenance 
team, and whether parts could be stocked in advance. 

39. WORK PLAN 2022 

At its next meeting on 27 May 2022, the Committee would consider:

 Proposals for the shared use of Newent and Dursley Community Fire 
Stations.

 How GFRS will achieve the target of net zero carbon.
 An update on progress to address the two causes of concern identified 

during the HMICFRS inspection.

The following items were added to the work plan for future consideration by the 
Committee:

 Review of Severn Park Joint Training Centre (November)
 Emergency Services Network Programme (September)
 HMICFRS Inspection Feedback (July)
 The future of the Tri-Service Centre (July)
 An additional meeting to be arranged to consider the white paper on fire 

services reform
 Visits to Severn Park/ vehicle workshops at Waterwells.

40. FUTURE MEETINGS 

The dates of future meetings were noted. 

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

CHAIRPERSON

Meeting concluded at 11.30 am

Page 6



Fire and Rescue Scrutiny Committee actions – 4 March 2022

Topic Action Responsibility Progress

149. Update on the 
Community Risk 
Management Plan 
(CRMP)

To consider developing a version of the CRMP 
that would be accessible for the visually impaired/ 
non-readers. 

Clive Webber This will be picked up and 
considered by the GFRS 
Business Planning and 
Performance team at their 
next team meeting.

250. Update on the 
Community Risk 
Management Plan 
(CRMP)

To consider signposting potential recruits to the 
CRMP as part of the GFRS recruitment process. 

Adam 
Openshaw

Any future job adverts will 
contain a hyper link to the 
CRMP on the GFRS website 
once it has become a live 
published document.

351. Update on the 
Community Risk 
Management Plan 
(CRMP)

To include in the CRMP timeline an annual report 
on GFRS progress towards the net zero carbon 
target.

Clive Webber A specific action for an 
annual report on GFRS 
progress towards net zero 
carbon cannot be included in 
the CRMP because this 
document is the 4 year 
strategy for GFRS. GFRS no 
longer has its own fleet 
management, this has 
become part of the Combined 
Fleet Unit (CFU) at GCC and 
the zero carbon target is for 
them to drive and therefore it 
should be within the CFU 
plan. 

452. Update on the 
Community Risk 

An item on how GFRS aims to achieve net zero 
carbon to be added to the Committee work plan. 

Laura Powick Completed

P
age 7



Management Plan 
(CRMP)

553. Work Plan 2022 To add the following items to the work plan:
- Review of Severn Park Joint Training 

Centre (November)
- How GFRS will achieve net zero carbon 

(the current situation, actions that will be 
taken to achieve the target) (May)

- Emergency Services Network Programme 
(September)

- HMICFRS Inspection Feedback (July)
- The future of the Tri-Service Centre (July)
- An additional meeting to be arranged to 

consider the white paper on fire services 
reform (potentially late March/ early April)

- Update on progress to address the two 
causes of concerns identified during the 
HMICFRS inspection (May)

- Visits to Severn Park/ vehicle workshops at 
Waterwells (to be arranged).  

Laura Powick Completed

P
age 8



SECURITY CLASSIFICATION:  Official/ Official Sensitive etc URN: **.19.**

Template June 2019 Page 1

Fire & Rescue Scrutiny Committee

4. Partnership working with Police 

Meeting Date 27th May 10:00am Type of Report 

Sponsor
CFO Mark Preece; ACFO Gavin Roberts &
James Grierson 

Decision
 
Information                       √

Discussion 

Purpose of 
report and 
intended 
outcomes

Categorise the nature of the business by ticking the appropriate  box/boxes) 

Strategic Priority      Council Wide  
     or Service “Big” Issue

GCC Preview                   Tactical issue

Performance                                  Portfolio Management

Purpose 

The purpose of this report is to summarise the findings of a feasibility survey 
undertaken across 6 fire stations that have potential blue light co-location 
(Stroud, Dursley, Stow, Cirencester, Newent and Winchcombe). 

This report highlights the most appropriate stations based upon space 
available, driven by operational desire and legislative requirement to 
collaborate and inform any recommendations to the Chief Fire Officer, 
Assistant Director of Corporate Resources (GCC) Chief Constable and PCC of 
Gloucestershire, for consideration.

At this stage the report does not consider the operational or joint working 
service delivery opportunities which could be realised from co-location 
(these are not in scope). The next phase of work will determine the 
operational requirements of Police, ensuring Senior Leadership Team, Fire 
Scrutiny and Property Board approve an outcomes.

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



SECURITY CLASSIFICATION:  Official/ Official Sensitive etc URN: **.19.**

Template June 2019 Page 2

Resource Police: Vicki Heselton, Head of Estates and Support Services

GCC/Fire: James Grierson, Head of Logistics and Resources

Consultees
One Gloucestershire Board & Group
CFO’s and SLT members
Police Operational Blue Light Collaboration Board

Benefits
 Shared skills and operational interface
 Operational collaborative working 
 Potential income for GCC
 Potential revenue savings (Police & Fire)
 Delivers the duty to Collaborate Legislation

Context
Six Community fire stations have been considered as opportunities for 
collaborative working. They were Dursley, Stroud, Stow, Cirencester, 
Newent and Winchcombe. Below are a summary of the key findings at 
each station. A full assessments can be provided.

 Dursley: This station was considered by Police to be a viable option. The 
station is within a very short distance of the existing Police station that 
offers community engagement, parking facilities and a varying degree of 
office accommodation and conversion options without compromising the 
fire stations identity and operational areas. This station is occupied by 
Ambulance and has the potential to become the first Blue-Light 
operational station in the County

 Stroud: Whilst a large station, this offers limited space for Police. Stroud is 
currently used as the Counties Stand-by Emergency Control. The station is 
not front facing for passing footfall and community engagement.

 Stow: This station was not considered viable as there are no space 
available for office accommodation which could meaningfully be 
converted to accommodate the Police. Access and egress were considered 
unsatisfactory.

 Cirencester: This station has a large area on the first floor and offered 
suitable parking requirements it was considered insufficient 
accommodation to house Police staff located at the main Cirencester 
central site which offers a front facing site for the community. 

Page 10



SECURITY CLASSIFICATION:  Official/ Official Sensitive etc URN: **.19.**

Template June 2019 Page 3

 Newent: This site is considered to be a significant improvement for Police 
as they currently occupy a Police point in the Library. There are various 
opportunities for office accommodation, parking, ease of access/egress 
and a visible presence. The area identified was occupied by the Ambulance 
Service and currently used to accommodate a MOGG. There would be no 
impact on the operational areas. Benefits would be an increased presence 
following a break-in in 2021.

 Winchcombe: Feasibility to be completed 12th May 2022  

Core Brief 
Statement 
Report

The Purpose of this report is to summarise the key findings from the 
feasibility/suitability surveys undertaken to assess the collaborative, co-
location working opportunities between Fire and Police Blue Light 
Services. The report assessed the potential viability of co-location with 
Police at Dursley, Stroud, Cirencester, Stow, Newent and Winchcombe, 
sought to identify which stations could be progressed. Each survey 
considered very simple high level user requirements and space availability 
based on current known information. Based on that high level information 
gathered this report considers the most viable options, were there to be a 
developed case for usage are Newent and Dursley Community Fire and 
Rescue Stations. Winchcombe may also be in scope based on a recent 
feasibility survey with Police.

The following are key points:

 There will be no enabling costs to GCC/Fire, these will be covered 
by the Police

 The shared space will have no impact to how fire currently operate 
out of a station

 Partnership working will not change the identity of a fire station

The full summary of the suitability surveys can be provided upon request.

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Fire and Rescue Scrutiny Committee

Report Title: Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service Fleet Carbon 
Reduction Plan

Meeting Date: 27.05.22

Chair: Cllr Jeremy Hilton

Presenting Officer: Mark Preece – Chief Fire Officer Gloucestershire County 
Council

Support from John Townsend – Corporate Fleet Unit 
Manager for Gloucestershire County Council  

Purpose of Report: To consider the proposed Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue 
Service fleet carbon reduction plan

Planned Dates

Background 
documents:

Vehicle Asset Management Plan 

Appendices Appendix 1 – Vehicles aged stats
Appendix 2 – euro 1 to 6 ratings

Recommendations To………….. note the report

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



                                                                                                    
Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service Fleet Carbon 

Reduction Plan
1. Background

1.1. Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service (GFRS) currently runs a fleet of 128 
vehicles, of which 74 are under 3.5 tonnes in weight. There are 54 heavy goods 
vehicles over 3.5 tonnes.  These vehicles are a mixture of type and specialisms 
that are used for specific requirements for GFRS.

1.2. Many vehicles are now quite old and are therefore more polluting than more 
modern Vehicles. Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue service has bid for and has 
been successful in securing capital funding to drive the vehicle replacement 
programme forward. This provides a perfect opportunity to positively impact 
carbon reduction in Gloucestershire.

1.3. In order to target the most effective use of this capital, and as part of a wider 
GCC carbon reduction plan, GFRS plans to replace older sections of the light 
vehicle fleet using battery electric vehicles as far as practicably possible. Critical 
to this is the installation of charging infrastructure to allow deployment of these 
new vehicles.

1.4. In parallel to this, capital funding agreed for vehicles over 3.5 tonnes will allow 
replacement of vehicles, often at Euro 3 standard, with Euro 6 standards and 
above (see appendix 1 for Euro category definition). The emerging electric 
vehicle marketplace for this is under constant review, and any way that hybrid 
electric or full electric vehicles can be used, will be considered as appropriate.

2. Current Status

Light Vehicle Fleet

2.1. Of the current light vehicle fleet the numbers and categories of euro standards 
are shown in the graph below:

Euro 3, 
[VALUE] Euro 4, 

[VALUE]

Euro 5, 
[VALUE]

Euro 6, 
[VALUE]

GFRS VEHICLES BY CATEGORY <3.5T

Page 14



2.2. The number of vehicles at EURO 6 category has been influenced by the 
introduction of 18 officers’ vehicles in 2021. Other than this there are a 
significant number of vehicles at, or below EURO 5 standard, and it is these 
that will be the focus of immediate replacement: ideally by electric vehicles as 
far as possible.

Heavy Vehicle Fleet

2.3. Of the 54 vehicles in the heavy vehicle category, the picture is worse, with over 
half the vehicles being Euro 3 or Euro 4. As above, the successful bid for capital 
funding has created the ability to drive the replacement of these as soon as is 
practically possible.

Euro 3, 
[VALUE]

Euro 4, 
[VALUE]

Euro 5, 
[VALUE]

Euro 6, 
[VALUE]

 GFRS VEHICLES BY CATEGORY >3.5T

2.4. In terms of CO2 emissions across the whole fleet, the relative output is 
described in the graph below:

Euro 3, 56.4, 
14%

Euro 4, 51.6, 
13%

Euro 5, 
163.2, 41%

Euro 6, 
127.2, 32%

GFRS CO2/CATEGORY/YEAR (TONNES)

2.5. As can be seen from the above, well over half of the emissions come from the 
earlier vehicles. In the following paragraphs it outlines the approach to reducing 
this carbon footprint through the vehicle replacement programme.

3. Capital Funding Bid

3.1. Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue service has been successful in bidding for 
capital funds to the tune of c.£6.1m to be allocated over the next two years.

Page 15



3.2. Of this, £1.15m is apportioned to light vehicles, with a further £4.8m being 
allocated for fire appliances and specialist heavy vehicles.

3.3. The vehicle replacement plan has been evaluated and the immediate next 
steps are being actioned:

4. Light Vehicle Fleet

Cars
4.1. Ten Vauxhall Corsa cars have been identified for immediate replacement. The 

critical dependency is installing the charging points for their replacements; 
however, the assumption is that all these will be replaced by Electric Vehicles 
(e.g. Nissan Leaf). This alone would save 12 tonnes of CO2 per year. In 
addition, a further six new vehicles will be purchased for the Business Fire 
Safety team; this would create a further 7.2 tonnes saving against equivalent 
ICE vehicles. 

Light Vans
4.2. There are seven light vans that have been identified for replacement under the 

capital bid. As above, subject to charging points, their addition would reduce 
the annual CO2 emissions by a further 9 tonnes. A further four small vans have 
been identified for purchase, so again these would create a further offset of c.6 
tonnes against ICE equivalents.

Large Vans
4.3. Four vehicles have been identified under the replacement plan (1 Euro 3 and 3 

Euro 4 categories), all are being replaced by modern Euro 6 vehicles.  

4x4 Pick up
4.4. Six vehicles (1 Euro 3 and 5 Euro 4) will be replaced with Euro 6 replacements

4x4
4.5. Eight ageing Land Rovers will be replaced by modern mild-hybrid vehicles (e.g. 

Volvo XC60), replacing Euro 4 and Euro 5 vehicles with modern Euro 6 
equivalents.

5. LGV Fleet

Pumping Appliances
5.1. An initial ten front line appliances have been selected for replacement, including 

Euro 4 (5 off) and Euro 5 (3 off) category vehicles. The specification is under 
way and the order will be placed in the next quarter.

5.2. EV pumping appliances are a new concept that has been developed by a 
couple of suppliers.  These vehicles although a good idea, are very expensive 
and a high infrastructure upgrade at stations would be required.  These vehicles 
work off a Hybrid solution with a diesel engine back up to the electric battery.  
This is something to consider in the future as the price and technology 
improves.

Special Vehicles
5.3. Three Special vehicles are now going through the specification and 

procurement process (2 ALP and 1 Multi-role vehicle).

Page 16



5.4. The summary table below shows the likely outcome of the initial tranche of 
vehicle replacements: 

Current Vehicles by Classification

Vehicle type Euro 3 Euro 4 Euro 5 Euro 6 Replacemt. 
No.

Replacemt. 
Type

Annual 
CO2 saving 

(tonnes)
Cars 10 10 EV 12

Cars (Projected) 6 6 EV 7.2
Vans Light 1 6 7 EV 9
Vans Light 
(projected) 4 4 EV 6

Vans Large 1 3 4 Euro 6 TBA
Pickup 4x4 1 5 6 Euro 6 TBA

4x4 1 2 5 8 Euro 6 TBA
Pumping Appliance 5 3 2 10 Euro 6 TBA

Specials 3 3 Euro 6 TBA

 Projected 
against EV

6. Carbon Offset Opportunities

6.1. Whilst a number of the larger vehicles will need to be ordered as Euro 6 ICE 
vehicles, it is recognised that technology will continue to evolve, allowing 
subsequent replacements using Ultra Low Emission Vehicles (ULEVs) into the 
larger vehicle classes.

HVO
6.2. In the meantime, GCC has started to evaluate the use of carbon offsetting and 

greener fuels, such as Hydro Treated Vegetable Oil (HVO), which is entirely 
suitable for Euro 6 model vehicles.
 

6.3. HVO is a low carbon, low emission, fossil-free and sustainable alternative to 
conventional fossil diesel.  It is fully interchangeable with conventional diesel, 
and can be mixed at any percentage, cutting CO2 emissions by up to 90%.

6.4. As this fuel can only be ordered off the normal supply grid, a project has been 
set up to evaluate the storage at a specific site as a trial. The nature of the site 
will depend on the use of only Euro 6 classification vehicles, so will rely on the 
vehicle replacement programme to some extent.

Off Setting
6.5. GFRS and GCC use the All Star fuel cards to fuel GCC vehicles, many card 

providers allow you to sign up to a tree planting off setting scheme such as 
ecopoint by the fuel card company and Greenprint.  This is based on the more 
litres you use the more trees are planted and this offsets the fuel use.  This will 
be pursued in 2022 for GCC to sign up to a scheme.

Page 17



Hydrogen
6.6. Working in collaboration with other Fire and Rescue services, GCC and GFRS 

are looking at Hydrogen technology as a potential alternative to fossil fuels or 
EV, this technology being a possible good solution to the larger vehicles.

Solar
6.7. Solar supplementary panels fitted to vehicles is a concept currently being trailed 

within GFRS through Trailar.  One of the Wholetime station vehicles has been 
fitted with a Solar panel to the roof of the vehicle.

6.8. This is a proven technology to reduce capacity on the alternator of the vehicle, 
reduce fuel and increase battery life.  The Fire vehicles are on a constant 
charge at stations, and this will hopefully also reduce the mains supply power 
through Solar back up.

Solar production example

Page 18



Location
6.9. Vehicle siting is also important, vehicles currently centralised in their location 

can then increase mileage due to locations that are too far away to maximise 
efficiency and utilisation of the vehicles.  Spreading pool car use as an example 
around the county makes it easier and more efficient in their use.  Likewise 
having vehicles that can cover different operational aspects could maximise 
use.

Idling
6.10. Anti-idling policy and training is an area that is underutilised for simple carbon 

reduction.  A new policy across GCC including GFRS will be introduced to 
educate drivers on vehicles.

7. Future Replacement Policy

7.1. As the availability of a mature EV charging infrastructure evolves, consideration 
can be given to an increasing range of vehicles. Large utility vehicles are 
coming onto the market (for example, Refuse Vehicles, Road Cleaning 
Vehicles, and Buses), however, besides being extremely expensive, these will 
require Ultra Rapid Charging capability (almost certainly DC based), which, in 
itself, will necessitate the need for upgraded electrical infrastructure by the 
council.  Having said this, there is no reason why future Fire Appliances should 
not be EVs.  The evaluation of the everchanging market in terms of alternative 
powered vehicles should be reviewed each year.

7.2. All vehicles have a life cycle identified as to when they should be replaced, with 
this information part of the GCC Vehicle asset management plan.

7.3. GFRS vehicles are overdue many replacements with vehicles being old and 
therefor more polluting. (see appendix 1 aged fleet stats) Further business 
cases will be created with subsequent bids submitted to fulfil an ongoing 
replacement program.

7.4. The GFRS carbon reduction plan will feed into the wider GCC Carbon reduction 
plan.

Page 19



Appendix 1

Aged Vehicle Stats

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20
0
2
4
6
8

10
12
14
16
18
20

Vehicle age in years by number of vehicles at that age

Number of years

N
um

be
r o

f V
eh

ic
le

s

10%

20%

30%

40%

0 to 4 years 5 to 9 years 10 to 14 years 15 to 20 years

Aged vehicles by %

Page 20



Appendix 2

Euro 1 to 6 ratings
Since 1992, European Union regulations have been imposed on new vehicles, with 
the aim of improving air quality - meaning a vehicle has to meet a certain Euro 
emissions standard when it is made.

What are the European 'Euro' emissions standards?

Although emissions regulations date back to 1970, the first EU-wide standard – known 
as Euro 1 – wasn’t introduced until 1992, which saw catalytic converters became 
compulsory on new cars, effectively standardising fuel injection.
 
Since then, there have been a series of Euro emissions standards, leading to the 
current Euro 6, introduced in September 2014 for new type approvals and rolled out 
for the majority of vehicle sales and registrations in September 2015.

The aim of Euro emissions standards is to reduce the levels of harmful exhaust 
emissions, chiefly:

 Nitrogen oxides (NOx)
 Carbon monoxide (CO) 
 Hydrocarbons (HC)
 Particulate matter (PM)

These standards are having a positive effect, with the SMMT (Society of Motor 
Manufacturers and Traders), claiming: “It would take 50 new cars today to produce the 
same amount of pollutant emissions as one vehicle built in the 1970s.”

In 2017, the SMMT quoted the following figures in support:

 Carbon monoxide (CO): petrol down 63%, diesel down 82% since 1993
 Hydrocarbons (HC): petrol down 50% since 2001
 Nitrogen oxide (NOx): down 84% since 2001
 Particulate matter (PM): diesel down 96% since 1993

Because petrol and diesel engines produce different types of emissions they are 
subject to different standards. Diesel, for example, produces more particulate matter 
– or soot – leading to the introduction of diesel particulate filters (DPFs).

Euro 6
The sixth and current incarnation of the Euro emissions standard was introduced on 
most new registrations in September 2015. For diesels
A focus on diesel NOx was the direct result of studies connecting these emissions with 
respiratory problems.
To meet the new targets, some manufactures have introduced Selective Catalytic 
Reduction (SCR), in which a liquid-reductant agent (Adblu) is injected through a 
catalyst into the exhaust of a diesel vehicle. A chemical reaction converts the nitrogen 
oxide into harmless water and nitrogen, which are expelled through the exhaust pipe.

Page 21



The alternative method of meeting Euro 6 standards is Exhaust Gas Recirculation 
(EGR). A portion of the exhaust gas is mixed with intake air to lower the burning 
temperature. The vehicle’s ECU controls the EGR in accordance with the engine load 
or speed.
Euro 5
Euro 5 was the introduction of particulate filters (DPFs) for diesel vehicles, along with 
lower limits across the board. For type approvals from September 2011 and new cars 
from January 2013, diesel vehicles were subject to a new limit on particulate numbers. 
DPFs capture 99% of all particulate matter.
Euro 4
Improved catalytic converter that is able to filter out atmospheric contaminants such 
as sulphur and carbon monoxide more effectively. They also have less THC + NOx 
(Total Hydrocarbon + Nitrogen Oxide) and Nitrogen Particle matter.
Euro 3
Euro 3 split the hydrocarbons and nitrogen oxide limits for petrol and diesel engines, 
as well as adding a separate nitrogen oxide limit for diesel vehicles. The warm-up 
period was removed from the test procedure.
Euro 2
Euro 2 reduced the limits for carbon monoxide and the combined limit for unburned 
hydrocarbons and nitrogen oxide, as well as introducing different levels for petrol and 
diesel engines.
Euro 1
The first Europe-wide euro emissions standards were introduced in July 1992 and the 
regulations weren’t anywhere near as stringent as they are today.
The fitment of catalytic converters became compulsory on all new cars, and Euro 1 
required the switch to unleaded petrol. Back then, only hydrocarbons and nitrogen 
oxide were tested, along with particulate matter in the case of diesel engines.

Page 22



www.glosfire.gov.uk

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 6



www.glosfire.gov.uk

Inspection and Funding Timeframe

December January February March AprilSept to Nov

HMICFRS Full 
Inspection 27th

Sept to 
11th Nov

HMICFRS 
Hot 
Debrief 1st

Dec

Hot Debrief 
Feedback to 
Cllr Hawthorne 
3rd Dec

Draft outline MTFS bid 
10th Jan

AM’s Briefed on HMICFRS Feedback and 
MTFS Process 13th Dec

Resourcing Plan 
Process Agreed 
with Pete 
Bungard 8th Dec

GFRS Resources 
Benchmarked 
against Peer Group 
FRS 5th Jan

HMICFRS notify 
GFRS of 2 Causes 
for Concern 
7th Jan

GFRS submitted an Action Plan to 
address Causes of Concern 28th Feb

GCC Cabinet 
Approve £902k 
additional funding 
into GFRS 23rd Feb

PO’s and AM’s finalise Service Structure based 
upon confirmed investment of £902k 10th Mar

Phased recruitment of 
new roles 1st Apr

HMICFRS informally 
notify  GFRS of 2 
potential Causes for 
Concern 23rd Dec

Action Plan Working Group Est’d
4th Jan

P
age 24



www.glosfire.gov.uk

Resourcing Bid ‘ How do we close the gap’

The Brief agreed with the Chief Executive Officer:-

1. What resources can GFRS re-deploy or re-prioritise to tackle the gap?

2. What new resources would GFRS require in-house either Grey or Green 
Book?;

3. What new resources would GCC require at Shire Hall to support GFRS tackle 
the gap?; 

4. Of the above roles which are permanent or fixed-term contract?; and

5. What additional support can be provide through Shire Hall’s departments?

P
age 25



www.glosfire.gov.uk

Additional Resourcing Summary

New Posts from Bids made in 2021
• 2 x Community Support Advisors (Complex needs) 
• 1 x Road Safety Coordinator 
• 1 x Young Persons support Officer (Fire setting/Cadets) 
• 1 x Equality Inclusion & Diversity Lead
• 1 x Driver Trainer
• 1 x Training Watch Manager 
• 1 x Training Crew Manager
• 1 x Logistics Manager
• 1 x Pensions Officer
• 1 x Project Support Officer (Project Management)
• 1 x Data Analyst 
• 1x ICT Support Post
TOTAL NEW POSTS 13

Changing roles posts in 22/23
1 x GM moving from BFS to On Call
1 x SM moving from Non Ops Policy to Prevention
1 x WM moving from BPP to Strategic Support Officer Role

Additional NEW Posts from 22/23 Bid and PUP Grant Funding
4 x Station Managers (On Call Team)
3 x Watch Managers team (National Operational Guidance Team)
1 x WM (On Call Team)
1 x WM Fixed Term (On Call Team) 
1 x Crew Manager (On Call) 
2 x Crew Managers Fixed Term (On Call Team)
1 x Planning and Performance Manager (BPP Team)
1 x Protection Team Leader (Protection Team)
2 x Business Fire Safety Inspectors (Protection Team, PUP funded)
1 x Business Fire Safety Supervisor (Protection Team, PUP funded)
2 x HR/OD specialists (Recruitment Team)
1 x Internal Comms Officer (PROPOSED) (Communications Team)
1 x Digital Comms Officer (PROPOSED) (Communications Team)
1 x Admin Support (Admin)
2 x Admin Support Apprentices (Admin)
2 x Community safety Advisers 
TOTAL NEW POSTS 26
Total NEW POSTS ACROSS 2 YEARS 39

P
age 26



Planning &
Performance
Professional 

Standards
Compliance & 

Assurance
Collaboration

HMICFRS
Ops Assurance & 

Risk
Health, Safety & 

Welfare
Local Resilience 

Forum

Fire 
Enforcement

Risk & 
Intelligence
Prevention 
Road Safety

Safeguarding
Fire 

Investigation
Communication 
& Engagement

Strategic Financial 
Planning

Budget Management
Financial Services 

Financial Compliance 
and Assurance 
Liaison (GCC)

Pensions
PFI stations and 

SkillZONE contract

Equipment
Supplies

Procurement
Asset 

Management
Fire Admin

Fleet

Fire Control
Station 

Management
Response

Partnerships
Operational On-
call Recruitment 

& Retention
National 

Resilience
Co Responding

LRF Engagement

Civil Protection 
Team
Louise 

Antonova

Organisational  
Development & 
Transformation 

AM Adam 
Openshaw

Business 
Planning & 

Performance 
AM Clive 
Webber

Coroners 
Scott 

Riddell

Finance & 
Compliance 
Maria Boon

Logistics & 
Resources 

James 
Grierson 

Temp

Response & 
Resilience
AM Mark 

Astle

Prevention & 
Protection

AM Ian 
Tonner Temp

Trading 
Standards 

Karen 
Smith

Assistant Chief 
Fire Officer Jean 

Cole

Interim Chief Fire 
Officer Mark 

Preece

Assistant Chief 
Fire Officer

Gavin Roberts 
Temp

Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service Senior Leadership April 2022

Learning & 
Development 
Recruitment &  

Promotion
Workforce 
Planning 

HR Liaison (GCC)
Non Ops policy 
Co-ordination 

Equality, Diversity 
& Inclusion

Operational Policy/ 
National 

Operational 
Guidance

Severn Park

Temp 
Louise Read
PA to CFO

Lisa Voyce
Senior 

Support 
Assistant to  

ACFOs

Support 
Officer

WM

Notes: 
• Support Officer 

moved from 
BPP Team

P
age 27



Head of Business Planning & 
Performance 

AM Clive Webber

Control (Data) 
Shared Post

WM

Ops Assurance 
WM 

Leroy Hughes

Ops Assurance
WM Lea James

Ops Assurance
SM Russ Parker

Health, Safety 
& Welfare

Vacant

Performance Manager 
Planning CRMP & Business Plan

Performance, HMICFRS, KPIs, LPIs
Data & Risk Analysis

Professional Standards
Security Governance

Collaboration & Partnership Co-ordination
GM Mark Bostock Temp

Planning & 
Performance 

Manager
Planning CRMP and 
Community safety 
Plan, Performance, 

Data and Risk 
analysis 

Project Manager
Vacant

Local Resilience 
Manager
Vacant

Local Resilience 
Deputy Manager

Vacant

H & S Manager
SM Matt Clark

Planning & 
Performance 

SM Luke 
Hindhaugh:
HMICFRS, 

Professional 
Standards, 

Collaboration 
and 

Partnership 
co-ordination 

Notes: 
• Support Officer 

moved to POs Team
• 1 new Green Book 

role added to the 
structure

Ops Assurance 
WM 

Danny Saffer 

Performance & 
Improvement 

Officer
Emma Perkin

Performance 
Support
Megan 
Toomer 

Data Analyst
Rosie Jones

Data Analyst
Valentin 

Catuneanu

Data Analyst
Vacant

P
age 28



Head of Organisational 
Development & Transformation 

AM Adam Openshaw

National 
Operational  

Guidance 
WM
tbc

Operational Policy/ National 
Operational Guidance Manager 

SM Matt Armstrong

Learning & 
Development GM 
Nicola Bottomley

Data Co-
ordinator 

Paula Nugent 

Training 
Manager 

SM Adam Taleb 
Flexi Stn 15 

Winchcombe

Driver 
Trainer
Nigel 

Leppard

National 
Operational  

Guidance 
WM
tbc

GCC HR Business 
Partner

Colin Parkin

National 
Operational  

Guidance 
WM

Andy Rood

National 
Operational  

Guidance 
WM
Mike 

Ellmore

National 
Operational  

Guidance 
WM
Sally 

Moreton

Notes: 
• 3 new WMs in 

the structure

National 
Operational  

Guidance 
WM
tbc

Driver 
Trainer
Jason 
Gore

Driver 
Trainer
Graham 
Timbrell

Flexi 
Trainer 

CM
Ben King

Flexi 
Trainer

CM
Dean 
Allen

Flexi 
Trainer 

WM
Simon 

Robson

Flexi 
Trainer 

WM
Jon Bird

Flexi 
Trainer

CM
Matt 

Gardiner

Severn 
Park 

Instructor
Lee 

Clatworthy

Severn 
Park 

Instructor
Jonathon
Bowdler

Severn 
Park 

Instructor
Ian 

Bayliss

Severn 
Park 

Instructor
Stephen 
Mooney

Temporary Resource TBC 
seconded to work on ‘future 

of training project’ post 
Severn Park. 

P
age 29



Head of Organisational 
Development & Transformation

AM Adam Openshaw

People Development, Improvement, Culture/ 
Values, Equality, Diversity & Inclusion, 

HR Liaison, Recruitment, Promotion, Workforce 
Planning, Discipline and Grievance Co-ordinator

Carole Pittaway

Syrian Refugee 
Resettlement 
remains with 

CP but 
investigate GCC

HR / People / 
Workforce 

Planning Support
Gill Hickman

People, Workforce Planning 
Recruitment Promotions and 

Progression
SM Rich Kerry

Culture and Inclusion 
Manger

Imran Dean

GCC HR Business 
Partner

Colin Parkin

HR/OD 
Practitioner 

TBC

HR/OD 
Practitioner 

TBC

Notes: 
• 2 new Green Book posts 

added to the structure
• 1 Grey Book post 

removed and replaced 
by Green Book 
equivalent 

Syrian Refugee Co-
ordinator 

Cheryl Bennett

EDI Network

P
age 30



Head of Prevention & Protection 
AM Ian Tonner 

Temp

SkillZONE
Manager 

Maddy Jarrett  

Prevention Lead 
Donna Potts

Admin Support 
Prevention 
Kevin Jones 

SkillZONE
Resources & 

Volunteer 
coordinator 
Freya Willis

Safeguarding
Co-ordinator 
Paul Barrett

Community 
Safety 
Officer

Jo Glanville 

SkillZONE
Business 
Admin 
Anita 

Charlton

SkillZONE
Resources & 

Volunteer 
Manager Abi 
Carmichael

Community 
Safety 

Adviser
Kat Jones 

Community 
Safety 

Adviser Notes: 
• 1 new SM post 

established in 
the Prevention 
Team moved 
from ODT Team

GCC Comms 
Business Partner

Emma Wild

Sonia 
Schwaben
Web/Net
Policy co-
ordination 

support

Grey Book post in blue supported 
by savings from PUP use in 
Prevention 

Road Safety 
Coordinator 

Vacant

Andy and Kat are trained and in 
post the new additions will be for 
the fixed term positions

Community 
Safety 

Adviser 
Andy Fit 

Community 
Safety 

Adviser 

*NEW 
Digital 

Comms 
officer

Grade 6
PROPOSED

SkillZONE
Young 

Persons 
Support 
Officer 

Chris Hale 12 
month Temp

SkillZONE
Young 

Persons 
Support 
Officer 

Louise Barks

Public Engagement 
Officer Ruth 

Griffiths 
Link to Corporate 

Communications Team

* NEW Fire 
Comms Internal 
Officer Grade 8

PROPOSED

Temp Danni Gane
Comms support officer

Engagement, FOI, 
complaints staff 

Suggestion monitoring, 
culture & Values 

support

Prevention and 
Community 
Safety SM 

Vacant

Community Safety 
WM Sam Cooper

P
age 31



Head of Prevention & Protection 
AM Ian Tonner 

Temp

Business Fire 
Safety 

Inspector
CM Paul Bird 

Business Fire 
Safety Inspector

CM Bryan 
Gregory

Business Fire 
Safety 

Inspector 
Vacant

Notes: 
• 2 new Business Fire 

Safety Inspectors
• 1 Green Book 

Manager (WM 
Level) 

• Grey Book GM 
replaced with 
Green Book Team 
Leader 

Proposed structure for 2022/23.  
New posts paid for by PUP in blue 
will enable the money saved to be 
utilized to support the extra SM in 
Prevention 

Business Fire 
Safety 

Inspector
Simon Keen

Business Fire 
Safety 

Inspector 
Ben 

Weatherston 

Protection Team Leader
Green Vacant

Risk Intelligence 
Safety 

Inspector 
CM Hollyman

Business Fire 
Safety & Risk 
Intelligence 

WM Nick Bird

Business Fire 
Safety 

Inspector 
Vacant

Business Fire 
Safety 

Inspector      
CM Karen 

Gobey

Data Co-
ordinator 

Stuart 
Buchan

CAD 
Mapping 

Ade 
Viner

Business Fire 
Safety & Risk 
Intelligence 

WM Matt Prentice

Business Fire Safety 
Manager

SM Rich Lockyer
Flexi Stn 18 Stow

Business Fire Safety 
Inspector Green 

Book WM Vacant 

Business Fire 
Safety 

Inspector 
Kev Saturley

P
age 32



On-call Liaison
GM 

Head of Response & 
Resilience

AM Mark Astle

On-call
Recruitment
and Training

SM Matt 
Amey

X 3 On-call 
Stations

On-call 
Policy and 

Performance
SM

X 3 On-call 
Stations

On-call 
Budgets and 

Payroll
SM 

X 3 On-call 
Stations

On-call 
Contract 

Management
SM

X 3 On-call 
Stations

On-call
Liaison

WM Phil Dennis

On-call
Liaison

CM

On-call 
Liaison

Fixed Term 
CM

On-call 
Liaison

CM

On-call 
Liaison

Fixed Term 
CM

On-call 
Liaison

WM 

On-call 
Liaison

Fixed Term  
WM 

Notes: 
• 4 new SM posts
• 1 new fixed term 

WM posts
• 1 new permanent 

WM posts
• 1 new permanent 

CM posts
• 2 new fixed term 

CM post

On-call 
Gartan

SM
X 3 On-call 

Stations

Gartan Data Co-
ordinator 

Sarah Hawkins

Response Team 
Support
Lou Hart

P
age 33



Response Lead
GM Tom Burridge

Head of Response & 
Resilience

AM Mark Astle

LRM Stroud & 
Cotswolds/

CSP
x1 WT Station including 
On-Call, plus additional 

On Call Station
SM  Fawkes

LRM 
Gloucester & 

FoD/CSP
x1 WT area 

including On 
call Section
SM Singh 

LRM Chelt & 
Tewk /CSP
x1 WT area 

including On 
call Section
SM Adcock  

Lead for 
Medical 

Response/
LRF/NR

SM Scott

Fire Control Manager
SM Janet Williams

Black Watch: WM Chris Winter, CM Emma Hulland, FF 
Hannah Pellant, FF Hayley Dicks

White Watch: WM Amy Callus, CM Jack Mantle, FF Jen 
Holder, FF Emma Martin

Blue Watch: WM Dan Vickery, CM Rachel Gorton, FF 
Rena Mitchell, FF Ellie Holden

Red Watch: WM Becky Champ, CM Lydia Pilkinton, FF 
Meg Sherbourne, FF Jess Sykes

Gartan Data Co-
ordinator 

Sarah Hawkins

Control

Systems/Data 
Admin

WM Ben 
Slatter

ESMCP 
Project 

Manager 
Bruce 
Rudge 

Response Team 
Support
Lou Hart

Sarah Hawkins and Lou 
Hart also support the 
On call Liaison Team

P
age 34



Head of Logistics & Resources
James Grierson

Senior Procurement 
Officer 
Vacant   

Combined Fleet Unit 
SLA management

Logistics & Equipment 
Manager

Obi Selassie

Hydrant Technician 
Manager 

Kev Mashiter 

Handy Person
Kim Finch

Stores Officer 
Allan Moth

Technical Support 
Officers 

Graham Owen
Chris Jones

Hydrant Technician 
Brian Maidment

AMPS - facilities
SLA management

Logistics & 
Equipment 
Supervisor

VacantLogistics & Equipment 
Admin Co-ordinator 

Julie Nunn

Notes: 
• 2 new Admin 

Support in the 
structure

Admin Support 
Helen Jones

Admin Support 
Leanne McLean

Admin Support
Leigh Jane 

Admin Support
(apprentice) Admin Support 

Strategic Procurement 
Team

Admin Support
(apprentice) 

P
age 35



ICT Manager 
Rob Lacey

Web Development & System 
Support Officer 

Tony Dobbs

ICT Support Officer
VacantICT Support Officer

Vacant

Notes: 
• 1 new ICT 

Support Officer 
in the structure

P
age 36



Finance Apprentice 
Kayleigh Wilson

Fire Pension Schemes Officer
Francesca Jackson

PFI Stations & SkillZONE
Contract

& Finance Officer
Lisa Hiles

PFI Stations & SkillZONE
Contracts and Finance 

Manager
Becky Wrightson 

Head of Finance &
Compliance
Maria Boon

GCC Finance

Notes: 
• 1 Pension Scheme 

Officer in the 
structure

P
age 37



www.glosfire.gov.uk

Causes for Concern

The Service hasn’t done enough since the last inspection to embed its values and associated behaviours, and 
promote a positive workplace culture.

Recommendations:-

I. Improve how it engages with its staff to gain their commitment to the service’s values and associated 

behaviours;

II. Engage with its staff to develop a compelling vision of the service’s future culture and set out a clear pathway 

to achieving this which staff can understand and relate to;

III. Make sure all staff understand the behaviours which are expected of them and how these relate to the 

services culture;

IV. Support managers to confidently challenge and manager inappropriate behaviour;

V. Establish effective measures to monitor and manage staff workloads;

VI. Make sure all staff have equitable access to appropriate welfare support.

P
age 38



www.glosfire.gov.uk

Causes for Concern

The Service hasn’t done enough since the last inspection to improve understanding of the importance of equality, 
diversity and inclusion (EDI) and remove barriers to establishing EDI in the service.

Recommendations:-

I. Engage with its staff to develop a clear EDI objectives and a plan to increase awareness of EDI and its importance  

across the organisation. This should include understanding and addressing the impact positive action is having on 

staff;

II. Improve how it engages and seeks feedback and challenges from all areas of the service;

III. Understand the reasons for low declaration of staff diversity information and put in place a plan to address this;

IV. Assure itself it has effective grievance procedures. It should identify and implement ways to improve staff 

confidence in the grievance process;

V. Improve the understanding and use of equality impact assessments in all aspects of its work, consider if its 

policies and procedures are inclusive and support those with protected characteristics. 

P
age 39



www.glosfire.gov.uk

Causes for Concern

• As a result of these concerns, we were required to provide an Action Plan by 28th February 

2022, setting out how we intend to address the issues identified.

• The Inspection Team will revisit GFRS in the Autumn to review the progress being made 

against the Action Plan.

P
age 40



www.glosfire.gov.uk

Causes for Concern

P
age 41



www.glosfire.gov.uk

Causes for Concern

P
age 42



www.glosfire.gov.uk

Causes for Concern

P
age 43



www.glosfire.gov.uk

What Next…

• Briefing of the wider Service and staff

• Programme of station and department visits by PO’s and AM’s

• ‘Ask the Chief’ email account

P
age 44



www.glosfire.gov.uk

Questions

P
age 45



T
his page is intentionally left blank



FRSC Performance Report 27.05.22

Overview of performance for Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service

KEY: Meeting or Better than 
Target

Within tolerance of target 
(0-5% worse than target)

Worse than Target (> 
5% worse than target)

Measure Quarter 4 2021/22 
Performance

% of Safe and Well visits undertaken to those in high risk groups 79.0%
Number of Safe and Well visits undertaken per 1,000 population 0.89

Average Response times to dwelling fires 9 minutes 14 
seconds

Number of Accidental Dwelling Fires 60

Service Level Indicators - Performance reported to Senior Leadership Team 

Measure
Quarter 4 
2021/22 

Performance
Total number of deliberate fires 85
% of staff in GFRS that are female (as a % of the total workforce) 26.5%
% of staff in GFRS from BME Groups (as a % of the total workforce) 2.2% 
% of Operational staff (FF - WM) within 2 yearly qualification target for 
Breathing Apparatus 94.9%

% of Operational Incident Commanders within 2 yearly requalification target 98.1%
% of teachers who think their pupils will make safer choices after a session 100%

Average response time to Primary fires 9 minutes 55 
seconds

Average response time to Commercial fires 8 minutes 37 
seconds 

% of 72d premises within required frequency 88.9%
% of higher risk premises inspected within 
required time frame 50%

% of workforce temporary promoted within GFRS Awaiting Data
No. of RIDDOR injuries 0
% Forecast spend against budget Awaiting data
% of actions completed arising from audit recommendations 100%

Good Management of Service measures Community Safety - Performance Reported in the attached 
Scorecard and Summary (relevant highlights page 6)

Indicator Quarter 4 2021/22 
Performance

Sickness/Absence - Long Term (days per FTE) 2.37
Sickness/Absence - Stress 0.85
Sickness/absence - Overall (days per FTE) 3.48
% Staff Turnover – In Quarter 3.0%
Staff Turnover (Staff leaving as % of All Staff) - Rolling Year 13.8%

% Staff Appraisals complete (and entered on SAP)
25.4%

Internal reporting 
(not on SAP): 65%

Page 47

Agenda Item 7



0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Q4 2020/21

Q1 2021/22

Q2 2021/22

Q3 2021/22

Q4 2021/22

On or Ahead of Target Within Tolerance (0 - 5% Worse than Target) ≥ 5% Worse than Target

Community Safety    
Percentage of  Corporate Performance  Indicators 

On/Ahead,Within Tolerance  or Behind Target  

Overall, half of measures were better than or within tolerance of target in Quarter 4 (50%, 2 of 4 
indicators); this is a reduction in performance over the last two quarters. This is due to performance 
for average response time to dwelling fires moving from better than to within tolerance of target. 
Performance also continues to be impacted by the number of Safe and Well visits undertaken and the 
number of Accidental Dwelling Fires.

Corporate Performance Measures

1. The rate of Safe and Well visits remained similar to previous quarters throughout 2021/22 at 0.89 
per 1,000 population (570 visits). The number of Safe and Well visits are anticipated to improve due 
to crews returning to normal service following the lifting of COVID-19 restrictions, although we are yet 
to see an increase in visit numbers. Regular performance meetings are undertaken to ensure that a 
balance is maintained for the diverse workload of the Wholetime firefighters. Performance remains 
below target (2.35) and the comparator group average (1.50). 

There were 141 Safe and Well visits which hadn’t been undertaken more than 28 days after referral 
at the end of March; this is similar to last quarter (149). Of these, 45 visits had been awaiting a visit 
for more than 3 months, down from 199 at the end of Quarter 2 (199).

It is expected that a wholetime station should do 15 visits per watch per month, yet the average in 
2021/22 has ranged between 6-9 visits. This may appear to indicate a capacity issue due to other 
workload pressures. However, Gloucester North completed the most prevention activity (9 visits per 
watch per month) whilst also attending a higher number of incidents.

2. The service continues its positive work to reach the most vulnerable people in our community, with 
79% of Safe and Well visits undertaken being to people in vulnerable groups. Performance remains 
better than target (75%) and our comparator group average (74%). 

3. Timeliness of responding to accidental dwelling fires (where it was clear during the initial emergency 
call that the fire related to a dwelling) increased in Quarter 4, rising from 7 minutes 3 seconds in 
Quarter 3 to 9 minutes 14 seconds. Performance was within tolerance of target.

Page 48



It should be noted that the majority of the incidents in 2021/22 (around 80%) had a total horizontal 
area damage of less than 5 m2. However, there were slightly more injuries resulting from dwelling fires 
in 2021/22 (25) compared to the previous two financial years (18 in 2019/20 and 20 in 2020/21). In 
addition, there have been 3 deaths over the last 12 months – prior to this, there has been no fatalities 
resulting from dwelling fires for over two years.  

4. There have been lower levels of accidental dwelling fires over the last 5 years compared to the 5 
years previous to that (annual average of 273 compared to 300). During the first year of the pandemic, 
incidents of accidental dwelling fires were particularly low (246). This has impacted the target that we 
set ourselves which is based on a 14% reduction on the rolling 3-year level of accidental dwelling fires. 
However, we also haven’t achieved our aim of a year-on-year reduction in the number of accidental 
dwelling fires when comparing incidents in 2019/20 (270, pre-pandemic), which had similar levels of 
accidental dwelling fires as in 2021/22 (272). 

5. We will be developing a measure for 2022/23 relating to inspections of all commercial premises as 
part of the work being undertaken to strengthen the data infrastructure and performance 
management framework. 

Half of high-risk premises inspected were within timescale in Quarter 4 (50%). Performance has 
followed a declining trend throughout 2021/22, reducing from 94.7% of inspections within timescale 
in Quarter 1. While, the rate of decline has reduced quarter-on-quarter, performance is too low and 
is significantly below target. This was an area where improvement was highlighted by HMIC during the 
inspection in Autumn 2021; the subsequent ongoing and substantial decline in performance is 
therefore a concern. 

In recent months there have been a number of care homes that have cancelled inspections due to 
either the presence of Covid at their premises or the heightened risk of Covid being brought into the 
home by allowing entry. In addition, there has been an increase in reactive work that has affected 
capacity to address other workload priorities. 

Service Performance Measures Highlights

Prevention and Protection

Number of deliberate fires (Seasonal Target: 52, Actual: 85)
The number of deliberate fires is worse than the seasonal target and the same time last year (57 
deliberate fires). Deliberate fires followed a reducing trend between 2016/17 to 2020/21 (341 
incidents). Again, the pandemic may have affected incident numbers in 2020/21 with the result that 
they were lower than the trend. However, we have seen a 5% increase when comparing the number 
of deliberate dwelling fires from 2019/20 to 2021/22 (367 incidents compared with 387 incidents). As 
with accidental dwelling fires, we have not achieved the year-on-year reduction in incidents that is 
our aim.

% of 7(2)d premises within required frequency (Target: 100%, Actual: 88.9%)
Of the premises receiving a 7(2)d inspection in Quarter 4, 89% were within required frequency. This is 
an increase compared with last quarter (69%), however, it is worth noting here the small sample size 
in Quarter 4. Performance remains worse than target.

Response

Average response time to Primary fires (Target:10:00, Actual:09:55)

Page 49



Average response time to Commercial fires (Target:10:00, Actual: 08:37)
The average response time for Commercial fires has continued to decrease and although the average 
response time to Primary Fires has increased slightly, both of these still remain better than target.

People

% of operational staff (FF – WM) within 2 yearly requalification target for Breathing Apparatus 
(Target: 100%, Actual: 94.9%)

The vast majority of Operational staff (FF - WM) have an up-to-date breathing apparatus 
qualification (93.5%); this is similar to last quarter and below target. Of the 16 people whose re-
qualification was overdue, one had a valid risk assessment and nine have a refresher course 
booked.

% of Operational Incident Commanders within 2 yearly requalification target (Target: 100%, 
Actual: 98.1%)
Most Operational Incident Commanders are within 2 yearly requalification (98.1%), up from 95% 
in Quarter 3. This remains within tolerance of the target. This equates to 2 firefighters and 1 crew 
manager without a current/valid qualification. These are all on call members of staff, with 2 due to 
failure of the course and 1 with an expired qualification. Risk assessments have not been carried 
out. 
There are 5 members of staff whose qualification is due to expire within the next 3 months and do 
not have a requalification course booked yet.

Number of workforce temporarily promoted within GFRS (Target: 25, Actual: )
Awaiting the data

Finance

Forecast revenue budget outturn % variance. (Target: 0%, Actual: - 
Awaiting the data

GFRS Scorecard & Dashboards

GFRS Scorecard Q4 
2021-22.pdf

Page 50



Quarter 4 2021/22

Purpose of the report
To provide a strategic overview of the Council's performance for Quarter 4 2021/22.

The following scorecards are enclosed:

Prepared by the Performance and Improvement Team

Page number
Key to Symbols 2
Gloucestershire Fire & Rescue 3
Strategic Risk Register Summary 4

GFRS Scrutiny Committee

1

P
age 51



Risk Impact/Consequence

Likelihood 1
Insignificant

2
Minor

3
Moderate

4
Major

5
Critical

Almost
certain
(5)

5 10 15 20 25

Likely
(4) 4 8 12 16 20

Probable
(3) 3 6 9 12 15

Possible
(2) 2 4 6 8 10

Rare
(1) 1 2 3 4 5

Reporting Basis

Year to Date Performance accumulated over the year

Rolling Year Average performance over a 12 month
period

Annual Performance measured once a year

Latest
Quarter

Performance this quarter

Snapshot Performance at a particular point in time

Forecast Predicted position at the end of the year

Level of
Risk

Score

Low 1  6
Moderate 7 – 12
High 13 – 25

Risk Rating
(calculated by multiplying the Impact with the Likelihood of each risk)

Risk Symbols
Risk Value Increasing
Risk Value Decreasing
No Change

Measure Symbols
Performance Better than Target
Performance Worse than Target
Performance significantly worse than Target
No information
Missing Target
No Value

Bigger is Better A bigger value for this measure is good
Smaller is Better A smaller value for this measure is good
Plan is best Where it is better for performance to be on target rather than above or below

Key to Symbols

2

P
age 52



Public Protection

Cllr David Gray

Fire & Rescue

% of Safe and Well visits undertaken to those in high risk
groups

Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 85.3% 83.4% 83.0% 78.4% 79.0% 75.0%

The service continues its positive work to reach the
most vulnerable people in our community, with 79%
of Safe and Well visits undertaken being to people in
vulnerable groups. Performance remains better than
target (75%) and our comparator group average
(74%).

Number of Safe and Well visits undertaken per 1,000
population

Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 0.64 0.78 0.83 0.89 0.89 2.35

The rate of Safe and Well visits remained similar to
previous quarters throughout 2021/22 at 0.89 per
1,000 population (570 visits). The number of Safe and
Well visits are anticipated to improve due to crews
returning to normal service following the lifting of
COVID19 restrictions, although we are yet to see an
increase in visit numbers. Regular performance
meetings are undertaken to ensure that a balance is
maintained for the diverse workload of the Wholetime
firefighters. Performance remains below target (2.35)
and the comparator group average (1.50).

0.84

Average Response times to dwelling fires Smaller is Better Latest Quarter 9.10 8.39 9.29 7.03 9.14 9.00

Timeliness of responding to accidental dwelling fires
(where it was clear during the initial emergency call
that the fire related to a dwelling) increased in
Quarter 4, rising from 7 minutes 3 seconds in Quarter
3 to 9 minutes 14 seconds. Performance was within
tolerance of target.

Number of Accidental Dwelling Fires Smaller is Better Latest Quarter 68 75 63 74 60 57

There have been lower levels of accidental dwelling
fires over the last 5 years compared to the 5 years
previous to that (annual average of 273 compared to
300). During the first year of the pandemic, incidents
of accidental dwelling fires were particularly low
(246). This has impacted the target that we set
ourselves which is based on a 14% reduction on the
rolling 3year level of accidental dwelling fires.
However, we also haven't achieved our aim of a year
onyear reduction in the number of accidental
dwelling fires when comparing incidents in 2019/20
(270, prepandemic), which had similar levels of
accidental dwelling fires as in 2021/22 (272).

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Mar21 Jun21 Sep21 Dec21
Actual
Mar22

Target
Mar22

Comments
Comparator
Group

3

P
age 53

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')


Strategic Risk

Strategic Risk Register

SR10.1

Failure of the Council or a key partner to effectively respond
to a major incident such as flooding that results in community
disruption and failure to return to normal, within required
timescales.

Preece,
Mark

High 20 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 9 Moderate 9 Moderate
9

Work continues to take place to support the workstreams that form the
'Emergency Management Framework' project;
Although progress is being made on work areas, we are not in a position to lower
the overall assessment at the end of Q4. Some key workstreams continue to
require work to ensure that they are fit for purpose and training / exercises need
to be delivered to key stakeholders.

The overall assessment will not be in a position to be lowered until all the
response teams are fully established, Gold, Silver have finalised guidance,
support staff recruited and key training exercise(s) delivered. The final strand of
planned activity will be the finalised GCC Resilience standards.

Strategic Risk 10: Emergency Response & Business Continuity Threats

Risk Owner
Inherent
Risk

Mar21 Jun21 Sep21 Dec21
Actual
Mar22

DoT Mar
22

Mitigating Actions

4

SR10.4

Due to insufficient business continuity management
arrangements failure of the Council or a key partner to
effectively deliver their statutory services, resulting in
community disruption and failure of corporate objectives.

Preece,
Mark

High 16 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate
12

The overall assessment for this quarter is unchanged from the previous quarter
and reflects the following.

Work continues to take place to ensure that all service areas have an uptodate
business continuity plan in place which address an agreed range of significant
risk scenarios. In line with best practice, business impact analyses (BIAs) need to
be conducted before Business Continuity Plans (BCPs) are developed / updated.
BIA sessions therefore continue to be rolled out to plan owners with a revised
target date of BIA completion by end June 2022 (and BCPs by end of December
2022). Whilst progress continues to be made (see MI below) this is still not at the
pace required and this will be a matter for discussion at the corporate BCM
Assurance Board. Work to update the Corporate Recovery Plan, the final strand
of planned activity, requires BIAs to be materially complete first.

BIAs uptodate: end Q3 34%; end Q4 52%.
BCPs uptodate: end Q3 18%; end Q4 26%.

SR10.6

Insufficient workforce capacity and/or instability adversely
impacting on pace and sustainability of improvement and
contributing to increased risk to firefighter safety or capability
to deliver emergency services to the community

Preece,
Mark

High 20 Moderate 8 Moderate 8 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate
12

There has been a recruitment and selection process carried out to backfill
substantive posts. In year and MTFS bids are progressing to cover additional
resources as well as funding for development and training. Even with these
measures in place it is still recognised that there are many work pressures on
staff and work is underway to alleviate some of these pressures.  This Risk has
been identified by the recent HMICFRS Inspection Report and work is underway
to identify the additional resources required to address the risk of having
insufficient capacity and capability within the workforce.

Strategic Risk 10: Emergency Response & Business Continuity Threats

Risk Owner
Inherent
Risk

Mar21 Jun21 Sep21 Dec21
Actual
Mar22

DoT Mar
22

Mitigating Actions

P
age 54

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col11')


Fire and Rescue Scrutiny Committee – Wholetime Operational Firefighter 
Benchmarking

Report Author – Luke Hindhaugh

Background:

At the corporate Overview & Scrutiny Committee, benchmarking information was 
shared which showed Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service (GFRS) to have one 
of the lowest proportions of Wholetime firefighters based on the Rural/Urban 
classifications of Fire and Rescue Services as defined by Department for Environment, 
Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA). 

% Wholetime firefighters 
of total firefighters 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021 until 

end of Q2
Gloucestershire 49.3% 46.7% 48.9% 46.6% 47.3%
Significantly Rural 
Comparator Group 59.9% 60.2% 60.0% 61.8%  
Quartile ● ● ● ●  
Of Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service's (GFRS) 21 stations, the majority are staffed 
entirely by on-call firefighters. Of the remaining five stations, two are staffed by full-time 
firefighters and three have a mixture of both full and on-call firefighters. The immediate 
response is designed to cover areas where higher call rates are experienced due to 
population and building numbers. GFRS are in the bottom quartile with a lower percentage 
than it's comparators.

Introduction:

Benchmarking has a number of benefits, including how well GFRS performs compared 
to other Fire and Rescue Services, it can identify areas for improvement or 
performance gaps and it helps to set performance expectations. That said, prior to any 
benchmarking, there is a requirement to ensure the following; would benchmarking 
enhance the performance of GFRS, is it the right thing to do for GFRS, would GFRS 
see the same results, is the comparison equal? 

It should be noted, that the comparison presented at the Corporate Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee was not to show poor performance, just a statement of fact, and 
as such, was not a performance benchmark. 

Comparison Groups:

In the Police, as part of their data comparators, they use ‘Most Similar Groups’ 
(MSGs). MSGs are groups of police force areas that have been found to be the most 
similar to each other based on an analysis of demographic, social and economic 
characteristics which relate to crime. HMICFRS states that:

MSGs are designed to help make a fairer comparison between police forces than the 
England and Wales average can sometimes offer. Although caution should still be 
used in making black and white comparisons between forces, even in the same MSG.

Page 55



Previously, in Fire, there use to be ‘Family Groups’ that were based on the similar 
parameters of the Police’s MSGs, however these became obsolete due to Services 
combining, budgets changing and the groups not being reviewed. Family groups are 
currently under review by the NFCC and consultation process is due to start within Q3 
of this year. 

The comparator group used for the overall wholetime percentage was based on the 
DEFRA classification which is used by the Home Office to compare data sets, such 
as, response times. The classification is based on the following parameters:

 Predominantly rural: 50% or more of their area is 'rural'
 Significantly rural: less than 74% of their area is 'urban' and 26% or more of 

their area is 'rural'
 Predominantly urban: 74% or more of their area is 'urban'

This comparison therefore does not take into consideration social and economic 
characteristics, demographic or risk analysis. 

The other factor that changes this comparison is that currently 40-wholetime firefighter 
provide on-call cover. If we were to make an assumption that this figure provided 20 
full time equivalent posts, then this would reduce comparison figure to 49% wholetime 
and 51% on-call. 

Resourcing to Risk: 

As part of the Fire and Rescue National Framework for England (2018), every Service 
has a requirement to produce a Community Risk Management Plan (CRMP) that 
identifies how a service will resource risk (this includes demand). As part of previous 
CRMP’s, the Service has carried out predictive analysis and modelling to identify the 
current resourcing requirements based on the risks identified at that time. The Service 
also has a comprehensive degradation plan, built on analysis, to mitigate against 
situations that sit outside of the scope of the CRMP, which impact on resource 
availability e.g. Covid-19.  

To ensure that the Service has a greater understanding of its risks, an in-depth 
Community Risk Profile of Gloucestershire has been produced.  In addition to this, as 
part of the latest CRMP for 2022-2026, the Service has committed to completing a 
predictive analysis and modelling project that will cover the Service existing fire cover, 
specialist appliances and emergency medical response arrangements using the risks 
identified in the Community Risk Profile report. This is to ensure that the Service has 
the required number of resources, with the right people and equipment, at the right 
times and in the right locations. 

Summary:

In determining the resourcing/staffing requirements of any Fire and Rescue Service, 
there should be an in-depth analysis, which would not be based on any single 
performance or benchmarking metric taken in isolation. The research, analysis and 
the findings from the predictive analysis and modelling project will help to ensure that 
the Service has a greater understanding of its resourcing and personnel requirements 

Page 56

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/2110377/community-risk-profiles-gloucestershire-fire-and-rescue-service.pdf


for the future. The attached data tables give a small insight to how further analysis is 
required to establish the factors around resourcing to risk. These include firefighters 
per population, incidents per population, incidents per comparison group and the 
comparison between wholetime and on-call numbers. All of these are useful metrics; 
however, they should be used in conjunction with one another to form richer insights. 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



Fire and Rescue Scrutiny Committee - Work Plan 2022

4 March 2022 27 May 2022         15 July 2022

 Update on the CRMP
 GFRS collaboration with SWAST – report 

from GFRS highlighting the impact of this 
work on the service, including the positives 
and negatives of this collaboration 
(SWAST rep. invited but no response yet).

Standard items 

 GFRS Performance Data and Updates

 Proposals for the shared use of Newent 
and Dursley Community Fire Stations.

 How GFRS will achieve the target of net 
zero carbon (report to determine the 
current situation and actions that will be 
taken) (John Townsend)

 Update on progress to address the two 
causes of concern identified during the 
HMICFRS inspection.

Standard items 

 GFRS Performance Data and Updates

 HMICFRS inspection feedback 
 The future of the Tri-Service Centre

Standard items 

 GFRS Performance Data and Updates

2 September 2022 11 November 2022

 Update on progress with GFRS and 
Constabulary/PCC collaboration (written 
report to focus on the three themes 
identified: the Shared Estate, Road Safety, 
and Community Safety).

 Emergency Services Network Programme

Standard items 

 GFRS Performance Data and Updates

 Feedback on the success/ value of the 
Young Person Support Officer role (after 6 
months in post). 

 Review of Severn Park Joint Training 
Centre

Standard items 

 GFRS Performance Data and Updates

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 8



Future Items 

1 Consultative White Paper on fire 
services reform 

Additional meeting 
to be arranged (late 
March/ Early April - 
tbc)

5

2 Fire Cover Review/ High Risk Buildings Date to be confirmed
Workshops, visits and member development sessions

3 1 Visit to Severn Park Joint Training Centre To be arranged

4 2 Visit to the vehicle workshops at 
Waterwells

To be arranged

P
age 60


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes
	FRSC Actions - 4 March 2022

	4 Proposals for the shared use of Newent and Dursley Community Fire Stations
	5 GFRS Net Zero Carbon Report
	6 HMICFRS Inspection Update
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	Slide Number 22
	Slide Number 23

	7 GFRS Performance Data and Updates
	GFRSSC Performance and Risk Scorecard Q4 2021-22
	Fire and Rescue Scrutiny Committee - Benchmarking

	8 Work Plan 2022



